Sevenoaks Town Council Minutes of the Town Council Meeting held on 12th June 2023

in the Council Chamber, Town Council Offices, TN13 3QG

Livestreamed and available to view on YouTube until approved by Council: https://youtube.com/live/GPnNdsP9Lzo?feature=share

Meeting Commenced: 8.17 p.m. **Meeting Concluded**: 8:35 p.m.

Cllr Claire Shea, Mayor	Present	Cllr Chloe Gustard	Present
Cllr Libby Ancrum, Deputy Mayor	Present	Cllr Sally Layne	Present
Cllr Sue Camp	Present	Cllr Lise Michaelides	Apologies
Cllr Dr Merilyn Canet	Present	Cllr David Skinner OBE	Apologies
Cllr Tony Clayton	Present	Cllr Nick Varley	Present
Cllr Catherine Daniell	Present	Cllr Gareth Willis	Present
Cllr Peter Dixon	Present	Cllr Nigel Wightman	Present
Cllr Victoria Granville	Present		

In Attendance: Town Clerk, Responsible Finance Officer and Senior Committee Clerk

Also Present: Cllr Richard Streatfeild, Sevenoaks District Council & Kent County Council

Representations received from Members of the Public:

Cllr Richard Streatfeild gave an update on key matters at Kent County Council, including:

- Public Health messaging during the heatwave
- Operation Brock Traffic Management Plan operation over the half term holiday
- Work on the Health & Social Care Integrated Strategy, which KCC was aiming to transform within the year
- JTB Working Group on 20mph scheme
- Pothole two phase repair process
- **130** Apologies for Absence: as shown above
- **131** Requests for Dispensations: none received.
- **132 Declarations of Interest:** none received.
- 133 Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Sevenoaks Town Council held on 15th May 2023 RESOLVED: to accept and sign the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Sevenoaks Town Council held on 15th May 2023 as a true record.

134 Minutes of Planning Committee

RESOLVED: To receive and adopt the minutes of the meetings of the Planning Committee held on 22nd May and 5th June 2023 as true records.

135 Casual Vacancy

The Town Council considered the draft Co-option Policy and Procedure for the filling of vacancies that exist on the Council which had not been filled by an electoral process.

Sevenoaks Town Council Minutes of the Town Council Meeting held on 12th June 2023

It was agreed that document be amended to include the line "To qualify to be eligible to be a Town Councillor you must answer yes to one of the following" which had been omitted in error.

It was noted that Sevenoaks District Council had formally advised that the required number of requests for an election had been received in respect of the Casual Vacancy in Northern Ward. The District Council would advise of the date for a Poll (should more than one candidate stand) as soon as possible.

RESOLVED that:

- 1) subject to the amendment above, the Co-option Policy & Procedure (attached as Appendix) be adopted
- 2) it be noted that that the required number of requests for an election had been received in respect of the Casual Vacancy in Northern Ward, and that the District Council would advise of the date of a Poll

136 Finance Reports

136.1 Review of System of Internal Control

RESOLVED: to note that the Statement on the System of Internal Control, signed by the Responsible Finance Officer, was approved at the meeting of the Finance & General Purposes Committee, held immediately preceding this Council meeting (*Minute 122.3 refers*), and signed by the Chairman of that Committee.

136.2 Annual Return for Year Ended 31st March 2023

The Town Council considered the recommendations of the Finance & General Purposes Committee meeting, held immediately preceding this Council meeting (Minutes 122.4 & 122.5 refer), regarding the Annual Return and Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2023.

RESOLVED that:

- 1) the Accounting Statements 2022/23, signed by the Responsible Finance Officer, be approved and signed by the Mayor;
- 2) the Annual Governance Statement 2022/23, signed by the Town Clerk, be approved and signed by the Mayor;
- 3) the Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2022/23, including the Annual Governance Statement, Statement of Accounts to 31st March 2023, and supporting papers for submission to the External Auditors, be adopted by full Council; and
- 4) the approved accounts be made available for public inspection for 30 working days, from 15^h June to 26th July 2023

Sevenoaks Town Council Minutes of the Town Council Meeting held on 12th June 2023

137 Boundary Lines between Council Land and 53 Bradbourne Vale Road

Consideration was given to a proposed legally arranged land swap between the Town Council and the owner of the property of 53 Bradbourne Vale Road in relation to land at the boundary with the Town Council Offices site.

RESOLVED: That Sevenoaks Town Council approve and sign the legal agreement enabling the land swap as identified in the legal agreement.

138 Councillor Reports: Town Council Representatives on External Organisations

None received at this meeting. Councillors wishing to provide an update at future
meetings were requested to provide brief written reports to the Committee Clerk
ten days before a committee meeting.

139 Mayor's Engagements

RESOLVED: To note and accept the reports relating to Mayoral activities:

- a) functions attended by the Mayor or her representative up to 31st May 2023; and
- b) the forthcoming Civic Events being organised by the Mayor during 2023-24

140	Press	Release:	None
-----	-------	----------	------

There being no	o further business the Mayor o	closed the meeting.
Signed	 Mayor	Dated

Sevenoaks Town Council - Co Option Policy & Procedure

Introduction

- 1. Co-option is the process by which a parish / town council selects a new Councillor when a vacancy exists on that Council that has not been filled by an electoral process.
- 2. Although the process for co-option is not prescribed in law, the Society of Local Council Clerks and the National Association of Local Councils provide best practice advice and guidelines, and this has been considered in this policy.
- 3. It is especially important that all applicants be treated alike so that the arrangements are seen as open, fair, and transparent.
- 4. The Co-option process to be used by Sevenoaks Town Council is as follows:
- 4.1. Whenever the need for Co-option arises, Sevenoaks Town Council will seek and encourage applications from anyone in the town who is eligible to stand as a Town Councillor.
- 4.2. Councillors or parishioners can legally approach individuals to suggest that they might wish to consider putting their names forward for Co-option.
- 5. The Co-option policy will be reviewed every four years.

Co-Option Policy

- 6. The advertisement to Co-opt will include:
- 6.1 the method by which applications can be made
- the closing date for all applications, at least two weeks' notice to be given.
- 6.3 a contact point to obtain more information
- show that further information is available electronically via the website, to include application forms and information about the roles and responsibilities of the council.
- 7. Existing Town Councillors may point out the vacancies and the process to any qualifying candidate(s).
- 8. Any candidate(s) found to be offering inducements of any kind will be disqualified.

- 9. Those seeking Co-option should apply to be Co-opted in writing to the Chief Executive / Town Clerk completing the prescribed form which will set out their reasons for standing and a confirmation that they meet the eligibility criteria. This must be supplied by the closing date for applications which will be at least 14 days prior to the decision meeting.
- 10. Eligibility of the candidate will be confirmed by Sevenoaks Town Council's Chief Executive / Town Clerk.

To qualify to be eligible to be a Town Councillor you must answer yes to the following.	
Are you a British citizen, a Commonwealth citizen, or a citizen of a member of the	Yes / No
European Union Country?	
Are you 18 or over?	Yes / No
Are you on the electoral register for Sevenoaks parish?	Yes / No
To qualify to be eligible to be a Town Councillor you must answer yes to one of the	
following:	
Have you lived either in the area covered by Sevenoaks Town Council parish, or within	Yes / No
three miles of its boundary, for at least a year?	
Have you been the owner or tenant of land in the area covered by Sevenoaks Town	Yes / No
Council for at least the last year?	
Have you had your only or main place of work in the area covered by Sevenoaks Town	Yes / No
Council for at least the last year?	
To qualify to be eligible to be a Town Councillor you must answer no to the following.	
Are us the subject of a bankruptcy restrictions order or interim order?	Yes / No
Have you within the last five years been convicted of an offence in the UK, Channel	Yes / No
Islands or the Isle of Man which resulted in a sentence of imprisonment (whether	
suspended or not) for a period of three months or more without the option of a fine?	
Are you disqualified by order of a court from being a Member of a local authority?	Yes / No

- 11. All eligible candidates will be invited, by letter, to attend the next full Sevenoaks Town Council meting following the application deadline. If candidates are unable to attend, this meeting will not be rearranged. The Co-option will still take place and voting on this vacancy will be subsequently based on this meeting and the candidate application form.
- 12. All Town Councillors will receive copies of candidate applications, along with the summons to attend the next full Town Council meeting following the application deadline. Candidate names will be displayed on the agenda of the meeting at which the Co-option will occur. No other details apart from the candidates names will be displayed. Candidate applications are strictly confidential.
- 13. An agenda item will be set aside for candidates to make a brief verbal presentation to Town Councillors, outlining their relevant skills and experience. Each candidate will be allocated a maximum of three minutes. After presentations Town Councillors may ask candidates questions if considered necessary. These presentations and questions will be in public open session.

- 14. The Mayor will then request those Town Councillors present to nominate a candidate to become a Town Councillor. A Co-option to the Town Council is by Council resolution and require a proposer and seconder to progress to the voting stage.
- 15. The Mayor will then place the names of nominated candidates in alphabetical order and proceed to vote.
- 16. A current Town Councillor may request that a signed ballot is used. The Chief Executive / Town Clerk will prepare voting slips for this purpose.
- 17. Only Town Councillors present in person at the meeting may vote upon a person to fill the vacancy. Town Councillors will have one vote per vacancy to be filled.
- 18. If a candidate is a relative of a Town Councillor, that Town Councillor should declare a prejudicial interest and withdraw from the meeting.
- 19. A successful candidate must have received an absolute majority vote by those Town Councillors present.
- 20. It follows that if there are more than two candidates for one vacancy and not one of them at the first count receives a majority over the aggregate votes given to the rest, steps must be taken to strike off the candidate with the least number of votes and the remainder must then be put to the vote again. This process must if necessary be repeated until an absolute majority is obtained.
- 21. The Mayor has the casting vote if necessary.



Sevenoaks Town Council Co-Option Form

Sevenoaks Town Council Co-Opted Councillor Person Specification

Personal Attributes

- Sound knowledge and understanding of local affairs and the local community
- Forward thinking
- Can bring a skill, expertise, or key local knowledge to the Council.

Experience, Skills, Knowledge, and Ability

- Ability to listen constructively
- A good team player
- Ability to pick up and contribute to a variety of projects
- Solid interest in local matters
- Ability and willingness to represent the Council and their community
- Good interpersonal skills and able to contribute opinions at meetings whilst willing to see others point of view and accept majority decisions.
- Ability to communicate succinctly and clearly
- Ability and willingness to work closely with other Councillors and to maintain good working relationships with all Councillors and staff
- Ability and willingness to undertake relevant training
- Basic knowledge of issues relating to town and parish councils or local authorities.

Circumstances

 Ability and willingness to attend meetings of the Council, normally Monday evenings and or meetings of other local authorities and organisations as may be necessary.







SEVENOAKS TOWN COUNCIL CO-OPTION APPLICATION FORM Full name Home address including postcode Telephone number Mobile Number **Email** LEGAL QUALIFICATIONS FOR BEING A TOWN COUNCILLOR To qualify you must be able to answer 'Yes' to the questions below: Are you a British citizen, a Commonwealth citizen, or a citizen of a member of the Yes / No European Union Country? Are you 18 or over? Yes / No Are you on the electoral register for Sevenoaks parish? Yes / No To qualify you must be able to answer 'Yes' to one of the following questions: Have you lived either in the area covered by Sevenoaks Town Council parish, or Yes / No within three miles of its boundary, for at least a year? Have you been the owner or tenant of land in the area covered by Sevenoaks Town Yes / No Council for at least the last year? Have you had your only or main place of work in the area covered by Sevenoaks Yes / No Town Council for at least the last year? To qualify you must be able to answer 'No' to all the questions below: Are us the subject of a bankruptcy restrictions order or interim order? Yes / No Have you within the last five years been convicted of an offence in the UK, Channel Yes / No Islands or the Isle of Man which resulted in a sentence of imprisonment (whether suspended or not) for a period of three months or more without the option of a Are you disqualified by order of a court from being a Member of a local authority? Yes / No Please briefly outline why you are interested in becoming a Sevenoaks Town Councillor?

Please tell us something about the life experience and skills you will bring to the Council, example, work in the voluntary or charitable sector.	for
example, work in the voluntary or chancable section	
What would you like to achieve as a Councillor?	
Are there any questions you would like to ask the council about your application or the r	ole
of councillor?	
	_
Signed Dated	